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1. Name of Property
historic name Valparaiso Downtown Commercial District
other names/site number N/A

2. Location
street & number yroughly along Lincolnway and Franklin Avenue NYAl not for publication
city, town  Valparaiso NUz Al vicinity
state Indiana ‘code IN county Porter code 127 zip code 46383
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
[X] private [:l building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
[X] pubtic-local [X] district 76 22 buildings
[] public-State [site sites
] public-Federal l:] structure structures

[T object 1 objects

' 17 __22 Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed in the National Register __3

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this
nomination ,_| request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the

National Regist¢r of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
in my opigfon/the pyop %@% does not meet the National Register criteria. [ see continuation sh%

- g o

-

Signature of certifying official Date

Department of Natural Resources
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property D meets [:]does not meet the National Register criteria. D See continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification

n.nus.u

I,.hereby, certify that this property is: . P lﬂt onal Re gisten
ﬁ[/jle:_rjered in the National Register. _ 7@ W S5 3 //f o
(74 e 7 A4

See continuation sheet.
Ddetermined eligible for the National
Register. L—_]See continuation sheet.
I:]determined not eligible for the
National Register.

Dremoved from the National Register.
l:]other, (explain:)

/[ :
Mature of the Keeper Date of Action
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6. Function or Use P

Historic Functions (enter cifb@ﬂlﬁgﬂm instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Commerce/Trade: business, professional, Commerce/Trade: business, professional,
financial, spetialtyy Aepartment store, financial, specialty, department store,
restaurant restaurant
ial: in Y : i
Government: city hall> fipe station. post office post office
7. Description
Architectural Classification Materials (enter categories from instructions)

(enter categories from instructions)
foundation __Stone/Concrete

Greek Revival walls Brick

Gothic Revival Stone: 1imestone, sandstone
Italianate roof Asphalt

Queen Anne other Metal: tin, cast iron

Classical Revival

Commercial Style

Describe present and historic physical appearance.
The Valparaiso Downtown Commercial District is located in the city of Valparaiso in

Porter County in northwestern Indiana. Located in what is known as the Calumet region of

Indiana, it is approximately 12 miles south of Lake Michigan and 15 miles from the city of

Gary. It is situated along the crest of a geologic feature known as the Valparaiso Moraine,

a low ridge left by the receeding glaciers of the last Ice Age. To the north lay the dunes

of Lake Michigan; to the south, the prairie and swampland of the Kankakee River valley.

The most famous trail of the region in the nineteenth century, the Sauk Trail, ran
along the Valparaiso Moraine, then northeasterly to Laporte and New Carlisle, and south-
westerly to Schererville and Merrillville. The major highways leading into Valparaiso
today include Route 2 from the northeast and southwest, Route 130 from the northwest, and
Route 49 from the north and south. State Road 30, a major east-west highway across
northern Indiana, passes just south of the city.

The historic district is a compact area centered along Lincolnway, the city's prin-
cipal east-west thoroughfare. It is traversed by six crossing streets running north and
south, the principal two being Washington Street and Franklin Avenue flanking either side
of a courthouse square. This square, bounded on the north by Lincolnway and on the south
by Indiana Avenue, is a landscaped, park-like block with one building, the courthouse,
located at its center. It is surrounded by commercial bui]dings on all four sides, with
the exception of one half block on the west side which is presently a parking lot.

Eorgan Street forms the d1str1ct s eastern boundary, Napo]eon Street forms its western
oundary.

The district contains 102 buildings, most of which are commercial, with a small
number of prominent civic and governmental buildings located on Lincolnway and on or
around the courthouse square. The grid plan of the streets and the rectangular configura-
tion of the lots determined the plan shapes of most of the buildings. With a few exceptions,
typical store buildings have narrow street frontages but extend back two to three times
their width. One large department store bu11d1ng, the former Lowenstine's (bldgs. #98, 99,
100 photo 52), is more than one half block in width. Nearly all of the structures are of
brick masonry, and are two or three stories in height. They typically have a flat roof
with a parapet on the street side. The second level facade of most of these buildings
is original while the street level has in most cases been altered with the addition of
a modern commercial front of wood or aluminum and glass. The civic and governmental
buildings were built of brick or limestone, and feature a more distinctive form, articu-
lation, and roof shape.

[X] see continuation sheet



8. Statement of Significance
Certlfylng offncnal has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:

Dnatlonally ' Dstatewnde [zlleeally S

Applicable National Register Criteria - [X]A--[J8 [X]c []D

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA [ B [Jc [Jpo [Je [JF [JeG

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Architecture c. 1870-1930 N/A
Commerce N

Po11t1cs/Government

Cultural Affiliation

Significant Person Architect/Builder
N/A Beck,. Frederick/ Cochrane, John C./ Lembke,

Charles/ Stiles, George S./ Whetmore,
James A./ Wilson, John D.

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

The Valparaiso Downtown Commercial District is significant for its nineteenth and
early twentieth century architecture, its history of commerce and retail trade, and its
political role as the county seat of Porter County. It has an excellent and cohesive
collection of Italianate, Queen Anne, and Commercial Style buildings surrounding a
Classical Style County Courthouse prominently located on a landscaped town square. The
district has been the center of Valparaiso's commercial trade, with numerous specialty
and department stores intermixed with restaurants, offices, and financial institutions.

At the same time, the Courthouse, along with a nearby City Hall and former County Jail,
make it symbolically and functionally the political and governmental heart of the city

and county. It is this combination -- commercial and political, retail and government uses,
housed within Italianate, Commercial, and the Classical style buildings centered around

the town square -- that make it an important example of development in a small turn-of-the
century Midwestern city.

In a broader context, the Valparaiso Downtown Commercial District is significant as
an example of the social, commercial, and civic development of the Calumet region of
northwestern Indiana in the period from 1870 to 1930. While its traditional ties were
to agriculture, and still are to a great extent, Valparaiso's development was also
inextricably linked to the phenomenal growth of Chicago during the latter half of the
19th century, and later to the industrial buildup of the entire Calumet region. By the
end of the 19th century, Valparaiso prided itself as a residential city, a not too distant
suburb of Chicago, easily reached by rail. The city also owed much of its flavor as a
residential and cultural community to the growth and popularity of what is now Valparaiso
University.

Origins and Early Development

Valparaiso was platted in 1836, as the town of Portersville, by the Portersville
Land Company, whose officers included J.F.D. Lanier, president of the State Bank of
Indiana in Madison. The original plat included the courthouse square at the center of town,
even though it was not initially certain that Valparaiso would be the county seat. It was
finally selected, however, given its location in the center of Porter €County and because
its developers offered to donate the courthouse square free of charge. It also lay on an

[K]See continuation sheet
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Previous documentation on file (NPS):

[:]preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) Primary location of additional data:
has been requested State historic preservation office
[:Ipreviously listed in the National Register []other state agency
[:Ipreviously determined eligible by the National Register [__J Federal agency
[:ldesignated a National Historic Landmark Local government
[:]fecorded by Historic American Buildings [:I University
Survey # []other
[:!recorded by Historic American Engineering Specify repository:
Record #

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of property __ 14 acres

UTM References

A l6] |419,4/7,1,0] |4,5]9,0{5,7,0] B|1,6] [419,5/2,2,0] (45190570
Zone  Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
c 16 (4[/9,5(2,2,0] [4,5/9,0{3,3,0 D1,6] (4/9.418,5,0] 14:519.:0[2:8:0]

[:] See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

Beginning at the northeast corner of West Lincolnway and Napoleon Street, proceed north
along the east right-of-way 1ine for North Napoleon Street to the south right-of-way
line for the alley between West Lincolnway and West Jefferson Avenue;

[X] see continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

The Valparaiso National Register Downtown Commercial District's boundaries delineate
the primary area of both commercial and governmental activity for Porter County and the
city of Valparaiso. The boundaries of the district are typically defined by streets or
alleys that demarcate the city's commercial core from its surrounding residential and

[X] see continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By
nameftitte __John W. Stamper, Architect/Architectural Historian

organization date __June 30, 1989
street & number __ 106 North Coquillard Drive telephone _219-287-2198
city or town South Bend state __Indiana zip code _46617

Assisted by: Alice Koby, Erika Pistorius-Stamper, Jeffrey Wolf, Nancy Pekarek
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The majority of the buildings in the district were built between 1870 and 1930.
Representing an eclectic progression of architecture, the building styles range from
Greek Revival, Italianate and Queen Anne, to Classical Revival and Chicago Commercial
styles. The district's variety of age and style lends character and interest to the
otherwise homogenous context of the area as a historical commercial complex. Of the
contributing commercial buildings in the district there are four Greek Revival
structures, thirty-one Italianate, one Romanesque, one Stick Style, one Queen Anne, four
Classical Revival style, one late Gothic style, and thirty-five Commercial style
buildings.

The Italianate style predominated in Valparaiso as it did in much of the rest of the
country between 1870 and 1890. Some of the best examples of the style in the district
include buildings housing the Valparaiso Office Supply (bldg. #5 photo 4), Neeley's Men's
Shop (bldg. #10 photos 5, 6), Mane Elegance (bldg #11 photos 5, 6), Falvey's (bldg. #21
. photo 10), Country on the Square (bldg. #21 photo 10) and Gils Drugs (bldg. #18 photo 9).
A1l are characterized by some form of arched windows set in two to three story facades
which are topped by a prominent cornice line.

The prevailing Commercial Style of the 1910's and 20's demonstrates the strong in-
fluence of Chicago functionalism on Valparaiso's architecture at a time of general pros-
perity and conservatism. Examples of this style include Horn's Block (bldgs. #14, 15
photo 7), the Dierking Barber Shop and Apartment Building (bldg. #76 photo 40), the Gratz
Piano Building (bldg. #53 photo 26), and most importantly, Lowenstine's Department Store
(bldgs. #98, 99, 100 photo 52). The latter, with its white glazed terra cotta facade,
exhibits the influence of Louis Sullivan's Carson Pirie Scott Store in Chicago.

Bank buildings in the district generally have a more prominent identity than do the
store and office structures. Both the Gainer Bank (bldg. #29 photos 14, 15) at 101 East
Lincolnway and the First National Bank (bldg. #67 photo 33) at 14 East Indiana Avenue are
in the Classical Revival Style with limestone facades highlighted by Classical columns,
cornices, and pediments, elements appropriately suggesting stability, tradition and
security.

The city's governmental buildings range from the Castellated Gothic Style of the 01d
Jail House (bldg. #72 photo 36) and the Italianate Style of the Sheriff's Residence
(b1dg. #71 photo 35) to the Classical Revival Style of the Porter County Courthouse
(b1dg. #45 photos 20, 21, 22) and the present City Hall (bldg. #4 photo 3). The city's
opera house, G.A.R. Memorial Hall (bldg. #73 photos 35, 37), is in the Romanesque Style.
A1l of these buildings are distinguished from the surrounding commercial buildings by
their size, stylistic details, and by a placement on their sites that allows for
landscaped lawns and formal approaches.

The district is surrounded primarily by contiguous historical and a few non-histori-
cal residential, religious, and commercial buildings. (There are probable National
Register-eligible residential districts located to the northeast along East Jefferson
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Street and to the north along Franklin and Michigan Streets.) Valparaiso University is
located approximately ten blocks east of the historic district.

With the exception of one block on the courthouse square, which now has a modern bank
building, the district possesses a high degree of cohesiveness. The prevailing scale and
materials reflect common values and resources.

Of the 101 buildings and one object within the boundaries of the district, 80 can be
considered as contributing to the overall historical and architectural character of the
area. The map of the district graphically identifies all contributing and
noncontributing structures as well as parking lots.

The following is an inventory of pivotal, contributing, and non-contributing
buildings in the district. Pivotal and contributing resources (C) are significant to the
historic and architectural development of the district, possess compatible design
elements, and maintain the scale, use, and texture of the district. Non-contributing
resources (NC) have little or no architectural significance or do not fall within the
period of significance of the district.

The order used in arranging the buildings in the inventory begins in the northwest
corner of the district and Tists buildings from west to east (left to right on the map)
for the north then the south side of the street. Buildings on the north-south streets
are then listed beginning at the northwest corner of the district, and proceeding south
(top to bottom on the map) for the west then the east side of the street.

West Jefferson Street (South Side)

1. 53 West Jefferson Street, Clay House Ceramics
(C), c. 1855, Greek Revival Photo 1

A two story brick house with gable to the street and with frieze board and returns.
Segmentally-arched windows have hood moldings. A porch on the north and east sides
has Tuscan Doric columns supporting a plain entablature. Front door has sidelights
and transom framed by Classical pilasters.

East Jefferson Street (South Side)

2. 12 East Jefferson Street, Nylook Beauty Salon
(NC), c. 1950 Photo 2
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3. 14 East Jefferson Street, Beach Building
(C), c. 1900, Queen Anne Style Photo 2

A two-story building clad with stucco and aluminum siding.

West Lincolnway (North Side)

4. 170 West Lincolnway, City Hall (originally Post Office)
(C), 1917, Classical Revival Photo 3

A one and two-story brick building on a projecting limestone base, T-shaped in plan,
with a Tow hipped roof. The central portion of the facade is recessed behind four
limestone Tuscan Doric columns and corner pilasters which support a limestone and
brick entablature. The doorway is reached by a broad flight of steps, which are
formed at the ends by thick limestone retaining walls, on which stand iron lamp
posts. An inscription with the architect's name, James A. Wetmore, is located at the
facade's west lower corner. Windows are 12/12 double hung windows with marble panels

above and limestone sills below. The windows on the north and south sides are round-

arched with fanlites. The limestone cornice surrounding the building is articulated
with fretwork.

The structure originally served as the Post Office, until its recent purchase by the
city of Valparaiso. It was begun in 1917, in the Classical Revival style so popular
for public buildings up until the first World War, and was designed by James A.
Wetmore. The U.S. Post Office began service from the building in 1919. Previously
Valparaiso's post office had operated from a building located at 7 Washington St.
according to city directory of 1890's.

The new brick and limestone structure provided adequate service until it was
recognized by the mid-1960's that even larger facilities were needed. Since there
was no room for expansion in the downtown area, plans were made for a new post office
at the north end of town. The building was offered for sale by the U.S. government
in 1984.

Meanwhile, Valparaiso's City Hall, which had occupied a building at 16 East Indiana
Avenue since 1878, was in need of new quarters. The council recognized the oppor-
tunity of obtaining a building whose "facade says City Hall," and purchased the old
post office in 1987.

The interior of the building was remodeled, except for the Tobby, which was preserved
for historic reasons. The post office continues to operate a station in the west
half of the lobby, while the city clerk's office occupies the other half. The
remainder of the 7000 square ft. structure contains the council chamber and other
offices.
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5. 162 West Lincolnway, Valparaiso Office Supply (originally Opera House)
(C), 1871-74, Italianate Photos 4, 5

A two-story brick building with tall, narrow, round-arched windows framed by brick
pilasters and crenelated brick corbels. The original windows have been replaced by
glass block. The parapet has corbelled brick piers framing lozenge-shaped horizontal
panels. The first floor has been altered by a modern storefront with plate glass and
porcelain panels, shaded by a metal awning. The building was designed by Christian
Lembke.

The building had been known for many years as the Grand Opera House. This first
"opera house" of Valparaiso was known as the Fiske Opera House. While the lower
floor housed businesses, the spacious second floor was designed to be a gathering
place for live entertainment. To accommodate the up to 700 seated people and the
weight of the stage, the upper floor is supported by a series of metal posts secured
over a brick wall in the basement extending the entire length of the building.

Apparently the placement of the Opera House in Valparaiso was well conceived because
of the town's easy access by rail to the major city of Chicago. A feature from a
magazine printed in 1900 states that "Valparaiso is one of the best 'show towns' on
the line and is visited by a majority of the leading companies." (From Headlight,
"Sights and Sounds Along the Grand Trunk Railroad.") After 1893, this honor shifted
to Memorial Hall on Indiana Ave.

In May of 1900, the building was purchased from John Brodie, a contractor who built
the portion of the Grand Trunk R.R. between Chicago and Valparaiso, by the Chekusuk
Lodge #56 of the Independent Order of 0dd Fellows. The building is still owned by
this group, whose members continue to hold meetings on the second floor. Although
the rows of seats are gone, the stage still remains, as do the remnants of gaslight
fixtures along the walls.

The storefront level has seen many businesses come and go; one of the most notable
tenants was Jacob Lowenstine, who in 1885 operated what was known as the "Grand Opera
One Price Clothing House." This small concern was to eventually grow into downtown
Valparaiso's most prominent department store. Since the turn of the century other
businesses have occupied the storefront, including an undertaker and furniture firm,
and a Sears-Roebuck store.

6. 160 West Lincolnway (former Commercial Building)
(C), c. 1920, Commercial Style Photos 4, 5
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7. 150 West Lincolnway, Elks Temple
(C), 1924, Classical Revival Photos 4, 5

A three-story orange brick building with the second and third levels divided into
bays by paired pilasters rising through both levels and supporting an entablature
with a Timestone beltcourse, brick frieze, a limestone cornice, and a brick
entablature. Typical bays on the south and east facades have two 12/12 windows on
each level, each with 8-1ite transoms; brick sills, and angled brick soldier course
lintels trimmed with keystones. The second floor windows of the central bay of the
south facade are elaborated with sidelights, while those of the third floor are
round-arched. The same motif is repeated in the central three bays of the east
facade. Further decorative elements of the facade include a limestone beltcourse
separate the first from the second levels, square limestone blocks with raised tondi
in the frieze above the paired pilasters, and a panel with the inscription "Elks
Temple" in the frieze above the central bay of the south side.

The building has been known as the Elks Temple, and to later generations as Harvey's
Dime Store.

The structure was built by the Valparaiso lodge of the Benevolent and Protective
Order of the Elks #500, in 1924-25. The lodge was founded in 1899, and had as its
members many of Valparaiso's most prominent citizens. Until 1921 the club occupied
various buildings in town, until it purchased a building at the corner of Lincolnway
and Lafayette. On January 18, 1924, this building was destroyed by fire. The Elks
purchased the property immediately to the west of this site and these two adjoining
lots became the site of the new temple.

The cornerstone, located at the southeast corner of the building, was laid on the
partially completed structure on October 2, 1924. The town celebrated with a parade,
and much fanfare.

The three-story building has been described as a mix of Classical/Federalist style.
It was designed by an architect named Whetherhogg of Chicago. It was designed to
house businesses on the main level and in the basement (which had a bowling alley).
The two upper floors were used as a ballroom and meeting chambers.

From 1947 to 1987, the building was best known as Harvey's Dime Store, which occupied
the basement and first and second floors. The second floor also housed the Fireside
Restaurant and a beauty parlor.

After standing nearly vacant for a year, the building has been renovated, which
includes facing the first floor with rusticated stucco.
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8. 74 West Lincolnway, Timber Shop
(C), c. 1910, Commercial Style Photos 5, 6

A two-story brown brick corner building with two paired windows on the second floor,
with limestone sills and keystones. Topped by a corbelled brick parapet. The first
floor has been altered with a modern wood and glass shopfront.

9. 72 West Lincolnway, The Sport Shop
(C), c. 1910, Commercial Style Photos 5, 6

A two-story brown brick building identical to 74 West Lincolnway, but separated from
it by a party wall. A canopy extends over the sidewalk from a side door.

10. 70 West Lincolnway, Neeley's Men's Shop
(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photos 5, 6

A two-story brick building with three round-arched windows on the second floor, the
wall topped by a corbelled brick parapet. The first floor has been altered with a
modern wood, brick, and glass shopfront.

11. 68 West Lincolnway, Mane Elegance Hair Salon
(C), c. 1870, Italianate Photos 5, 6

A two-story brick building with three round-arched windows on the second floor, with
raised frames and keystones. The wall is capped by a corbelled brick parapet with
stucco-covered panels framed by brackets. The first floor has been altered with a
metal and glass shopfront.

12. 66 West Lincolnway, Barry's Photography
(C), c. 1890, Italianate Photos 5, 6

A two-story brick building with three rectangular windows on the second floor, with
rounded top corners and pressed metal hood moldings and limestone sills. Wall is
capped by a metal parapet. The first floor has been altered with a modern glass and
opaque shopfront.

13. 64 West Lincolnway, Upstairs Downstairs Pizza
(C), c. 1890, Italianate Photos 5, 6
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14, 62 West Lincolnway, Horn's Block
(C), 1921, Commercial Style Photos 7, 8

A two-story building of yellow glazed brick with the corners and cornice framed by
dark brown glazed brick. The second floor has a group of three windows, a large one
in the center flanked by two narrower ones, all framed by a continuous limestone and
sill. Above is a projecting copper cornice with "Horn's Block" in raised letters.
The wall is capped by a stepped parapet containing a limestone tablet with "1921" in
raised numerals. The first floor has been altered by a modern shopfront of wood and
glass and with a mansard roof.

15. 60 West Lincolnway, United Cleaners
(C), 1913, Commercial Style Photos 7, 8

A two-story yellow glazed brick building similar to 62 West Lincolnway except for
the parapet which has a combination stepped and gabled profile and has a copper
coping. The first floor has been altered by a modern shopfront of enameled glass
with a canopy and large sign.

16. 58 West Lincolnway, Post Tribune Building
(C), c. 1890, Commercial Style Photos 7, 8

A three-story brick building with asymmetrically placed windows on the second
floor: one a three-bay Chicago window, the other a single double window. The wall
is capped by a projecting pressed metal cornice. The first floor has been altered
by a modern wood and glass shopfront.

17. 54-56 West Lincolnway, Sandlin Books and Bindery/Draperies and Blinds
(C), c. 1870, Greek Revival | Photos 7, 8, 9

A three-story brick building with seven evenly spaced windows across the second and
third floors. Windows have pressed metal sills and pedimental lintels. The wall is
capped by a corbelled cornice and parapet. The first floor has been altered with
the addition of modern wood, brick, and stone shopfronts, one with a mansard roof.

18. 52 West Lincolnway, Gils Drugs
(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photos 8, 9

A two-story brick building with a distinctive corbelled brick cornice composed of a
series of small segmental arches. The corner of the building is cut at a diagonal
and contains the entrance doorway. The first floor of the east facade has small
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high segmentally arched windows. There is evidence of windows and doors originally
located one-half level below ground, which have now been partially covered by the
sidewalk. Windows on the second floor are segmentally arched with a thin straight
limestone lintel across the top. Horizontal beltcourses of sawtooth pattern brick
extends across the facade at the top levels of the windows.

East Lincolnway (North Side)

19. 1 East Lincolnway, Joanna Joseph, Ltd.
(C), c. 1870, Greek Revival Photos 10, 12

A three-story brick building with three evenly spaced windows on the second and
third floors. They are trimmed with pressed metal sills and lintels, which are in
the shape of a Tow pediment. A bracketed metal cornice was moved to this building
from a remodeled structure at 103 East Lincolnway. The first floor has been altered
with the addition of a modern wood, glass and stone shopfront. The building's west
facade, facing Washington Street, has windows similar to those of the south facade,
but smaller. Those on the first floor have been bricked in.

20. 3-5 East Lincolnway, Cloths Loft/01d Style Inn
(C), c. 1870, Greek Revival Photos 10, 11, 12

A three-story brick building with seven evenly spaced double hung windows on the sec-
ond and third floors, with pressed metal sills and lintels. The facade is topped by
a corbelled brick parapet with dentil work. The first floor has been altered with
the addition of modern wood, glass and stone shopfronts, one with a mansard roof. A
door in the center bay gives access to a stairs leading to the upper floors.

21. 7-9 East Lincolnway, Falvey's/Country on the Square
(C), c. 1875, Italianate ‘ Photos 10, 11, 12

A three-story brick building with round-arched windows on the second and third
floors, with 1imestone sills and keystones. One half of the facade has been painted
grey while the other half retains its original brown brick color. The top of the
parapet has been removed from the painted portion.

22. 11 East Lincolnway, D. Butterfield Attorney
(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photos 11, 12

A three-story brick building with rectangular windows with drop down head moldings
on the second and third floors. The windows on the second floor have been partially
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24.

25.

26.

27.

filled in at the top. The facade is topped by a corbelled brick parapet. The first
floor has been altered with the addition of a modern wood and glass storefront.

13(A) East Lincolnway, Temptations Gifts

(NC), c. 1920, Commercial Style Photos 11, 12

13(B) East Lincolnway, Quick Print/Studio 21

(C), c. 1920, Commercial Style Photos 11, 12

15 East Lincolnway, Wark's Hardware

(C), c. 1900, Commercial Style Photos 11, 12, 13

A three-story yellow glazed brick building with large rectangular windows on the
second and third floors. Those on the top floor are original 3/3 double hung
windows, while those on the second floor are modern metal sash paired double hung
windows. The facade is topped by a bracketed metal cornice. The first floor
retains its original shopfront with a metal paneled base, metal frames, and glass.
A large metal sign panel is located between the shopfront and the second floor
windows.

17 East Lincolnway, Linkimers

(C), c. 1920, Commercial Style Photos 11, 13

A two-story brick building with double hung windows on the second floor with
limestone sills and keystones. A brick parapet is articulated with soldier courses
outlining large horizontal panels, whose corners are marked by small square blocks
of limestone. The first floor has a modern metal and glass shopfront.

21 East Lincolnway, Brown House Collectibles

(C), c. 1920, Commercial Style Photos 11, 13

A two-story brick building with grouped rectangular windows on the second floor, a
large one in the center flanked by smaller ones on the sides. A continuous brick
sill connects the windows horizontally. The facade is topped by limestone coping
and a small iron railing. The first floor has a modern shopfront.
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23 East Lincolnway, Binder's Diamonds

(C), c. 1890, Queen Anne Style Photos 11, 13

A three-story brick building with the corner cut at a diagonal. The second floor is
highlighted by projecting bay windows, including an octagonal bay at the diagonal
corner. The second and third floor windows are topped by pedimented hood moldings.
A large round-arched window appears on the third floor of the south facade. The
original metal cornice has been removed and the third floor window of the diagonal
corner has been removed and filled in with block. Saw-toothed beltcourses separate
each floor. The first floor has a modern shopfront with a mansard roof and brick
and wood sheathing.

101 (A) East Lincolnway, Gainer Bank, (formerly Farmers' State Bank)

(C), 1927, Classical Revival Photos 14, 15

A two-story building with limestone cladding above a granite base. The south facade
features a two-story round-arched opening framed by colossal fluted pilasters with
Ionic capitals and smooth-faced piers which support an entablature, dentiled
cornice, and pediment. The opening originally contained a brass, pedimented
doorframe and window mullions that repeated the curve of the arch. It presently
contains a modern tinted and spandrel glass curtain wall. Flanking the entrance on
either side are tall narrow recessed panels with a single narrow window on each
floor. A spandrel panel between the windows contains an eagle inscribed in a
circle. Above the top window is a flat yellow sandstone panel, and above, a
keystone intersects the molding. The parapet, flanking the central pediment, has
swags and an egg and dart motif. '

The building's west facade is lined with five round-arched windows on the first
floor set in a rusticated wall. The second floor is articulated with nine rectan-
gular windows divided by pilasters supporting a projecting cornice with a parapet.
Yellow smooth-faced sandstone panels are placed above the second floor windows. The
end bays are identical to those flanking the front entrance with narrow windows set
in recessed panels, and topped with parapets with swags and egg and dart moldings.

The bank was founded by Joseph H. Gardner in 1874; he was a man respected in
Valparaiso for his wisdom in financial matters. His institution was first known as
the Farmers' National Bank, later changed to the Farmers' State Bank. It was
located at the corner of Lincolnway and Washington, in the building which housed the
Music Academy. In February of 1926, a fire gutted this building, leading to plans
to construct a fire-proof structure.
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The new bank building was opened to the public on September 6, 1927. It boasted all
modern equipment, including a radio burglar alarm, and a rather new innovation at
the time, a night deposit box. The architectural firm employed was the George S.
Stiles Co. of Chicago, with Frederic Beck as supervising architect. The building's
interior was as elegantly done as the exterior. The Vidette Messenger described
some of its features: the front entry doors were of bronze, and four bronze
chandeliers hung from the ceiling. The railings were of marble, and the depositors'
writing desks were of marble and walnut.

In 1967 the bank's name was changed to Northern Indiana Bank and Trust Company. The
building had already undergone a major remodeling in 1957. The lobby underwent a
second remodeling in 1977, (and a third in 1978). In November of 1987, Northern
Indiana Bank was formally merged with Gainer Bank (formerly Gary National Bank).

Since it was built, the structure has undergone very little exterior changes - only
the front entryway and towering front window were modified. There are two additions
to the building to the north and the east - both facades are of limestone in keeping
with the design and character of the original structure.

101 (B) East Lincolnway, Gainer Bank Addition
(NC), 1984, Post-Modern Classical Revival Photos 14, 15

109 East Lincolnway, Sievers Pharmacy

(C), c. 1920, Commercial Style Photos 14, 15

A three-story yellow brick building with large rectangular windows on the second and
third floors. The original windows and frames have been replaced by modern metal
sash. The facade in topped by a simple corbelled cornice. The first floor has been
altered by the addition of a wood and brick shopfront with small mansard roofs
above the windows and door.

113-115 East Lincolnway, David's/Young Fashions

(NC), c. 1960, International Style Photos 15, 16

117 East Lincolnway, Restaurante Don Quijote

(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photo 16
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34, 119 East Lincolnway, Casbons
(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photo 16

35. 123 East Lincolnway, Carlson Electric Co.
(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photo 16

West Lincolnway (South Side)

36. 173 West Lincolnway, (Former Standard 0i1 Gas Station)
(NC), c. 1955, Modern Service Station Photo 17

37. 167 West Lincolnway, Top Drawer Resale Shop .
(NC), c. 1890, Commercial Style Photo 18

38. 165 West Lincolnway, Top Drawer Resale Shop
(NC), c. 1890, Commercial Style Photo 18

39. 163 West Lincolnway, Top Drawer Resale Shop
(NC), c. 1890, Commercial Style Photo 18

40. 161 West Lincolnway, Advertising Management Center
(C), c. 1920, Commercial Style Photo 19

A two-story brick building with two rectangular windows on the second floor with
limestone sills and angled brick soldier course lintels with limestone keystones and
endcaps. The facade is capped by a soldier course brick frieze with a projecting
plain limestone cornice, and a brick parapet with limestone copping. The first
floor has been altered by the addition of a modern storefront and signage.

41, 157-159 West Lincolnway, HFC Financial Center/European Shop and Delicatessen
(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photo 19

A two-story brick building with five evenly spaced segmentally arched double hung
windows with shutters on the second floor. The facade is capped by a corbelled
brick cornice with evenly spaced brackets. The HFC shopfront is a modern
alteration, while the delicatessen shopfront has been remodeled with a historically
compatible shopfront.
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155 West Lincolnway, Stitch and Stitch

(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photo 19

153 West Lincolnway, The Flyin' Wheel

(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photo 19

A two-story brick building with a richly adorned second floor with three
round-arched 2/2 double hung windows framed by paired pilasters and raised arch
moldings with prominent keystones. The parapet is articulated with four panels
divided by small paired piers, and with a layered cornice. The edges of the second
floor facade have corner quoins. The first floor has been altered with the addition
of a modern glass shopfront.

151 West Lincolnway, Syn Ergon

(C), c. 1880, Italianate Photo 19

A two-story brick building with round-arched 2/2 double hung windows on the second
floor with brick hood moldings with keystones. The parapet is articulated with
corbelled brick brackets and with a raised central parapet with an inscription panel
(now missing). The first floor has been altered by the addition of a modern
shopfront and a mansard roof.

West Lincolnway between South Washington and South Franklin,

Porter County Courthouse

(C), 1885/1934, Second Empire Classical Revival Photos 20, 21, 22

A three-story building with a raised basement. This imposing structure features
rusticated limestone walls with roun<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>